December 1874, "on account of want of attendance." There may have been some collusion; at a meeting of the Public School League the previous month the Rev. J. A. Stuart had referred to another school where the Presbyterians had "done their utmost to get it converted into a Public School, for which purpose they had, as a last desperate resort, taken their children away from it."

If the "want of attendance" was a put-up job, it was not immediately successful. The early months of 1875 were filled with meeting, petitions and agitation. The trustees of the Presbyterian School offered to hand it over for conversion into a Public School; the Council of Education declined. John Brown offered a site at Brownsville; Patrick Hill Osborne offered one "on the south side of the main road, about midway between the Church of England parsonage and the Post Office" (then near Cleveland Road). After many contradictory resolutions, amendments and rescissions, a public meeting on 28th May resolved "that the matter of deciding a site . . . be left in the hands of the Council of Education." The Council's choice was the site offered by Osborne (now the site of the Technical College), but it was nearly two years before the school went up. In the meantime, classes were conducted in the Presbyterian school hall under Joseph Bayliss; but the Education Department's records do not show the actual date when the classes commenced.

On 24 September 1875 the "Mercury" announced the appointment of a local School Board. The members were K. Mackenzie, R. J. Marshall, C. Heininger, John Bovard, Duncan Macrae and Evan R. Evans. Four weeks later the Board inserted an advertisement calling for tenders for the building. According to the "Mercury" the plan was for a "very neat and commodious" school house, designed to accommodate 54 pupils, and teacher's residence.

Finally the new school building was opened on 2 April 1877. It had cost $1,492. The inspection report for that year stated:

"The buildings are of brick, recently erected and well furnished. The school grounds have been planted with ornamental trees. All the subjects presented by the Council are taught. The schoolroom is clean and well ventilated, and the general discipline is fairly satisfactory in most respects."

Ultimately the "Episcopalian" school folded up, but Mr. Campbell and most of his pupils moved along the road to the new West Dapto Public School which opened in 1882. The R.C. school carried on as before. So, after all Mr. Huffer's huffing and puffing, there were still three schools where he had thought three were two too many.

(An extract from a forthcoming Society publication, "Nineteenth-Century Dapto").

PERSONAL:

Members of the Society heard with great regret of the misfortune which befell Mr. and Mrs. Ken Thomas, whose home was severely damaged by fire on 21st July. Our sympathy and best wishes go to them both.

BULLI FAMILY HOTEL:

Mr. Les Johnson, M.H.R., reports that the Bulli Family Hotel has been recommended by the National Trust Historic Buildings Committee for classification.